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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 8-K/A
(Amendment No. 1)
CURRENT REPORT
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): June 1, 2018
Helix TCS, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction
of incorporation)

000-55722
(Commission File Number)

81-4046024
(IRS Employer
ID Number)

5300 DTC Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
(Address of principal executive offices)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (720) 328-5372
Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following
provisions:
☐

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

☐

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

☐

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

☐

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933 (§230.405 of this chapter) or
Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2 of this chapter).
Emerging growth company ☐
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

Explanatory Note
On June 5, 2018, Helix TCS, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the “Original Report”) reporting, among other
things, the completion of its acquisition of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc., a company organized under the laws of the State of Florida, pursuant to Item 2.01 of
Form 8-K. Under parts (a) and (b) of Item 9.01 therein, the Company stated that it would file the required financial information by amendment, as permitted by
Item 9.01(a)(4) and 9.01(b)(2) to Form 8-K. This Current Report on Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 1) amends the Original Report in order to provide the required
financial information. Except for the filing of the financial statements and pro forma financial information, the Original Report is not being amended or updated in
any other manner.
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.
Audited financial statements of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the related notes thereto. are
included as Exhibit 99.1 and are incorporated herein by reference. The balance sheets as of March 31, 2018 (unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and the unaudited
statements of operations and cash flows for the three-months ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, and unaudited statement of stockholders’ equity for the
three-month period ended March 30, 2018 are included as Exhibit 99.2 and are incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheets and statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and the unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statements of operations of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017, reflecting the acquisition of Bio-Tech Medical Software,
Inc., and the notes thereto are included as Exhibit 99.3 and are incorporated herein by reference.
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(d)

Exhibits

Exhibit No.

Description

23.1

Consent of EisnerAmper, LLP.

99.1

Audited financial statements of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the related notes
thereto.

99.2

Balance sheets as of March 31, 2018 (unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and the unaudited statements of operations and cash flows for the
three-months ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, and unaudited statement of stockholders' equity for the three-month period ended
March 30, 2018.

99.3

Unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheets and statements of operations of the Company for the three months ended March 31,
2018 and unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 and the
notes thereto .
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
HELIX TCS, INC.
Date: August 13, 2018

/s/ Scott Ogur
Scott Ogur
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-221995) of Helix TCS, Inc. of our report dated August 13, 2018
on our audits of the financial statements of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for each of the years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 2017, which report is included in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A of Helix TCS, Inc. to be filed on or about August 13, 2018. Our report
includes an explanatory paragraph about the existence of substantial doubt concerning Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern.
/s/ EisnerAmper LLP
EISNERAMPER LLP
Fort Lauderdale, Florida
August 13, 2018

Exhibit 99.1

Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc.
Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Table of Contents
Independent Auditor’s Report

1

Financial Statements
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016

2

Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

3

Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

4

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

5

Notes to the Financial Statements

6-17

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc.
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. (the "Company"), which comprise the balance sheets as of December
31, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial
statements, the Company’s lack of liquidity and recurring operating losses raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s
plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
/s/ EisnerAmper LLP
EISNERAMPER LLP
Fort Lauderdale, FL
August 13, 2018
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2017
2016
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Loans and advances receivable
Work-in-process - Traceability
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Total assets

811,827
346,489
134,269
1,292,585

$

88,214
19,913

1,316,454
119,891
6,100
285,278
116,682
1,844,405
142,699
21,563

$

1,400,712

$

2,008,667

$

569,570
13,924
206,125
789,619

$

721,749
21,142
372,032
1,114,923

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Sales tax payable
Deferred revenues
Total current liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock (Series A), $50 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 2,868,195 and 2,865,697 shares issued and outstanding as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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5,000,000

5,000,000

28,682
1,265,263
(5,682,852)
611,093

28,657
1,196,554
(5,331,467)
893,744

1,400,712

$

2,008,667

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2017
2016
Revenues:
Commercial revenue – private-sector
Traceability revenue – public-sector
Vendor referral revenue
UCS revenue
Total revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

$

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Selling, general and administrative
Rent and occupancy
Professional and legal fees
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

5,919,648
1,772,738
40,396
54,701
7,787,483
3,141,143
4,646,340

$

2,646,745
1,432,581
398,809
433,223
86,636
4,997,994

Loss from operations

(351,654)

Other income:
Interest income
Net loss

269
$
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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(351,385) $

4,767,121
430,028
77,934
5,275,083
2,330,411
2,944,672

2,441,008
1,339,802
419,693
1,061,164
118,231
5,379,898
(2,435,226)

25,170
(2,410,056)

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 2015
Issuance of common stock under option
plan

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
2,606,787 $
26,068

Preferred Stock Series A
Shares
Amount
100,000 $
5,000,000 $

Additional
Total
Paid-in
Accumulated Stockholders'
Capital
Deficit
Equity
576,502 $
(2,921,411) $
2,681,159

258,910

2,589

-

-

256,320

-

258,909

Stock option compensation expense

-

-

-

-

363,732

-

363,732

Net loss

-

-

-

-

-

Balance at December 31, 2016
Issuance of common stock under option
plan

2,865,697 $

28,657

100,000 $

5,000,000 $

1,196,554 $

(2,410,056)
(5,331,467) $

(2,410,056)
893,744

2,498

25

-

-

2,473

-

2,498

Stock option compensation expense

-

-

-

-

66,236

-

66,236

Net loss

-

-

-

-

-

Balance at December 31, 2017

2,868,195 $

28,682

100,000 $

5,000,000 $

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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1,265,263 $

(351,385)

(351,385)

(5,682,852) $

611,093

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2017
2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Loss on loans and advances receivable, related party
Employee stock compensation expense
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Loans and advances receivable
Work-in-process - Traceability
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Sales tax payable
Deferred revenues
Net cash used in operating activities

$

(351,385) $
86,636
112,434
66,236

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment
Loans and advances receivable, related party
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under option plan
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net decrease in cash

118,231
65,889
15,000
363,732

(339,032)
6,100
285,278
(17,587)
(152,179)
(7,218)
(165,907)
(476,624)

137,738
44,470
(285,278)
(82,916)
341,490
4,884
293,501
(1,393,315)

(30,501)
(30,501)

(25,472)
1,000,000
974,528

2,498
2,498

258,909
258,909

(504,627)

Cash, beginning of year

(159,878)

1,316,454

Cash, end of year

$
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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(2,410,056)

811,827

1,476,332
$

1,316,454

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Description of Organization and Business
Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. (the "Company" or “BioTrack”) was originally formed as Bio-Tech Medical Software, LLC on January 31, 2007 in the State of
Florida. Pursuant to a Certificate of Conversion filed with the Secretary of State on February 28, 2008, the Company filed Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation to change its entity type to a corporation, with 100,000 Authorized shares of $1.00 par value Common Stock. The Company filed a Second Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the Secretary of State on February 8, 2013 increasing the Authorized Capital Stock of the Company to 21,000,000
shares, consisting of (i) 20,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $01 per share and (ii) 1,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share. A
Third Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation were filed by the Company with the Secretary of State on April 3, 2015. This amendment designated 100,000
shares of the Preferred Stock as Series A Preferred Stock with an original issue price of $50 per share. (See Note 8).
The Company develops and licenses inventory management, product traceability and point-of-sale software systems to the cannabis industry. BioTrackTHC, the
private sector compliance software, is licensed to customers such as dispensaries, cultivators, and processors. Traceability, the public-sector compliance software,
is sold to State governmental agencies. BioTrackTHC is an enterprise level compliance software that tracks from the point of inception (cannabis tissue, seeds, and
clones) through the plants lifecycle, capturing necessary data points along the way. Every fraction of gram is tracked during the harvest, conversion, and waste
process. Traceability is used by governmental agencies to track licensee activity at every step of the cultivation and dispensation process.
The Company contracts with customers located in the United States of America and territories of the United States, as well as in Canada and Australia, where
either medical and/or recreational cannabis sales are legal. The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Ft. Lauderdale, FL. and has sales, training and
customer support representatives in Denver, CO, Honolulu, HI and Olympia, WA.
Note 2. Going Concern Analysis
During the second quarter of 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of
Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern . This update provides guidance under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”) on management’s responsibility in evaluating whether there is substantial doubt about a company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and about related footnote disclosures. Under this standard, the Company is required to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern each reporting period, including interim periods. In evaluating the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, management considered the
Company’s current financial condition and liquidity sources, including current funds available, forecasted future cash flows and the Company’s conditional and
unconditional obligations.
The Company is subject to a number of risks similar to those of other software development businesses in the cannabis industry, including its dependence on key
individuals, uncertainty of product development and generation of revenues, dependence on outside sources of capital, risks associated with research, development,
and testing and the Company’s ability to maintain and grow its subscriber base. The attainment of profitable operations is dependent on future events, including
obtaining adequate financing to fulfill the Company’s growth and operating activities and generating a level of revenues adequate to support the Company’s cost
structure.
The Company has experienced net losses and significant cash outflows from cash used in operating activities over the past years. As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $5,682,852 a net loss of $351,385, and net cash used in operating activities of $476,624. As of and
for the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $5,331,467, a net loss of $2,410,056, and net cash used in operating activities
of $1,393,315.
The Company expects to continue to incur net losses and have significant cash outflows for at least the next twelve months. Management has evaluated the
significance of the conditions described above in relation to the Company’s ability to meet its obligations and concluded that, without additional funding, the
Company may not have sufficient funds to meet its obligations within one year from the date the financial statements were issued. The Company expects to finance
future cash needs from the results of operations and, depending on the results of operations, the Company may need additional equity or debt financing until the
Company can achieve profitability and positive cash flows from operating activities, if ever.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Considering the above, there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern through August 13, 2019 without raising additional
funding or eliminating certain expense items. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’s assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. A
successful transition to attaining profitable operations is dependent upon achieving a level of positive cash flows adequate to support the Company’s cost structure.
The Company’s future capital requirements for its operations will depend on many factors, including the profitability of its businesses, and the costs of operations.
Management’s plans include continuing its investment in the expansion of operations in new states, growing and diversifying its revenue streams, selectively
reducing expenses, and seeking additional funding with potential investors. Additionally, if the Company’s actual revenues are less than forecasted, the Company
anticipates that variable expenses will also decline, and the Company’s management will implement expense reduction as necessary. The Company is evaluating
other measures to further improve its liquidity. The Company’s management believes that these actions will enable the Company to meet its liquidity requirements
through August 13, 2019, however, there is no assurance that the Company will generate sufficient revenue or raise sufficient capital to fund operations.
Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes in estimates and assumptions are reflected
in reported results in the period in which they become known. Significant estimates made by management include, but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful
accounts, estimated useful lives of property, equipment and intangible assets, valuation of stock options, revenue recognition, sales commissions and bonuses,
stock-based compensation, and the valuation of deferred taxes. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical
experience and other factors, including the current economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could differ from management’s estimates and those differences could be material.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all unrestricted, highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. There
were no cash equivalents as of December 31, 2017 or 2016.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of internet domain costs and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives of 15 years. The Company periodically reviews the estimated useful lives of intangible assets and makes adjustments when events indicate
that a shorter life is appropriate.
The Company recorded amortization expense of $1,650 during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
The Company monitors the carrying value of long-lived assets for potential impairment based on whether certain triggering events have occurred. These events
include current period losses or a projection of continuing losses or a significant decrease in the market value of an asset. When a triggering event occurs, an
impairment calculation is performed, comparing projected undiscounted future cash flows, utilizing current cash flow information and expected growth rates, to the
respective carrying value. If the Company identifies impairment for long-lived assets to be held and used, the Company compares the assets’ current carrying value
to the assets’ fair value. Fair value is based on current market values or discounted future cash flows. The Company records impairment when the carrying value
exceeds fair market value.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable from the private-sector, public-sector and on-going training, support and software customization services are stated at the invoiced amount,
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company monitors its accounts receivable balances on an ongoing basis to ensure that they are collectible. The
Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on its historical experience of the relationship between actual bad debts and net credit sales and
significant account balances that remain outstanding beyond the normal credit terms.
Management charges balances off against the allowance when they are contractually past due and it is probable that they will not be collected.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts was $75,564 and $68,737 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Bad debt expense was $112,434 and $65,889 for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Revenue Recognition
The Company generates revenue from developing and licensing seed to sale cannabis compliance software to both private-sector and public-sector (government
agencies) businesses that are involved in cannabis related operations. The Company also generates revenue from on-going training, support and software
customization services.
The private-sector software entails cultivation tracking, inventory management, point of sale and analytic reporting to assist businesses in meeting their compliance
requirements and effectively manage their businesses. Customers within the private sector business are charged an initial one-time installation fee and the revenues
associated with these services are recognized upon completion of installation and configuration at a point in time. After the installation and configuration of the
software is completed, the customer is invoiced monthly and revenues associated with these services are recognized monthly over a period of time in which the
customer continues to use the software and related services.
The public-sector software assists government agencies in efficient oversight of cannabis related business under their jurisdiction. Revenues associated with
governmental contracts are longer-term in nature and recognized upon completion of certain milestones over a period of time or on a completed-contract basis at a
point in time. The Company considers the contract to be complete when all significant costs have been incurred and the customer accepts the project. Costs
incurred prior to the customer accepting the project are deferred and reflected on the Balance Sheet as Work-in-process – Traceability.
Additionally, revenues associated with on-going training, support and software customization services provided to both the private and public sectors are
recognized monthly on a straight-line basis over the contract period. Payment received in advance for installation, training or other performance obligations that
are not completed under the terms of the contract are unearned and are recorded as deferred revenues until the services are complete.
Expenses
Cost of Revenue
The cost of revenue is the total cost incurred to obtain a sale and the cost of the goods or services sold. Cost of revenue primarily consisted of hourly compensation
for personnel that are directly involved in the creation and development of the software. Additionally, hosting expense is included in cost of revenue. These costs
are deferred and are expensed at the time the related revenue is recognized.
Operating Expenses
Operating expenses encompass selling general and administrative expenses, salaries and wages, rent and occupancy, professional and legal fees and depreciation
and amortization. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of computer/software expenses, telephone/network expenses, stock compensation
expense, and travel expenses. Professional services are principally comprised of outside legal, audit, and consulting services.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of the assets range from
three to seven years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Upon sale or retirement of property and equipment, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in current earnings.
Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 amounted to $21,792 and $29,701, respectively.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the financial statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are
expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The Company has
incurred net operating loss for financial-reporting and tax-reporting purposes. Accordingly, for Federal and state income tax purposes, the benefit for income taxes
has been offset entirely by a valuation allowance against the related federal and state deferred tax asset for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Stock-based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to employees in conformity with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, Stock-Based Compensation . Stock based
compensation expense recognized during the year includes compensation expense for all share-based payments based on a grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions in the FASB guidance for stock compensation. The grant date is the date at which an employer and employee reach a mutual
understanding of the key terms and conditions of a share-based payment award.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (“ASC Topic 820”), provides a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.
ASC Topic 820 defines the fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between (1) market participant assumptions developed
based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions developed
based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs).
The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as
follows:
Level 1 — Assets and liabilities with unadjusted, quoted prices listed on active market exchanges. Inputs to the fair value measurement are observable
inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs to the fair value measurement are determined using prices for recently traded assets and liabilities with similar underlying terms, as
well as direct or indirect observable inputs, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.
Level 3 — Inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable inputs, such as estimates, assumptions, and valuation techniques when little or no
market data exists for the assets or liabilities.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Certain assets and liabilities, including cash, accounts receivable, work-in-process, loans and advances receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts and sales tax
payable, and deferred revenues, of the Company are required to be recorded at fair value either on a recurring or non-recurring basis. Fair value is determined
based on the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction based on market participants.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”), which supersedes
nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP. The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are
transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 defines a
five-step process to achieve this core principle and, in doing so, more judgment and estimates may be required within the revenue recognition process than are
required under existing GAAP. In addition, this guidance requires new or expanded disclosures related to the judgments made by companies when following this
framework and additional quantitative disclosures regarding contract balances and remaining performance obligations. ASU 2014-09 may be applied using either a
full retrospective approach, under which all years included in the financial statements will be presented under the revised guidance, or a modified retrospective
approach, under which financial statements will be prepared under the revised guidance for the year of adoption, but not for prior years. Under the latter method,
entities will recognize a cumulative catch-up adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the effective date for contracts that still require performance
by the entity. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2018 for nonpublic companies. Early adoption is only permitted as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The
Company developed an implementation plan to adopt this new guidance, which included an assessment of the impact of the new guidance on the Company’s
financial position and results of operations. On January 1, 2017, the Company adopted the new accounting standard ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and for all open contracts and related amendments as of January 1, 2017 using the full retrospective method. The Company has not previously prepared
financial statements under GAAP and accordingly has not reported revenues under ASC 605. As a result, there is no transition effect resulting from the application
of ASC 606.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, (“ASC 842”), which supersedes FASB ASC 840, Leases and provides principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. The new standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as
either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will
determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is also required
to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of greater than twelve months regardless of classification. Leases with a term of twelve
months or less will be accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating leases. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2020 for nonpublic companies. The Company is currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of ASU 2016-02 on its financial statements.
In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No 2017-09 “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting” (ASU 2017-09). ASU
2017-09 provides clarity and reduces both (i) diversity in practice and (ii) cost and complexity when applying the guidance in Topic 718, Compensation-Stock
Compensation, to a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award. The amendments in ASU 2017-09 provide guidance about which changes to
the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. An entity should account for the effects of
a modification unless all three of the following are met: (1) The fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if such an alternative measurement method is
used) of the modified award is the same as the fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if such an alternative measurement is used) of the original award
immediately before the original award is modified. If the modification does not affect any of the inputs to the valuation technique that the entity uses to value the
award, the entity is not required to estimate the value immediately before and after the modification. (2) The vesting conditions of the modified award are the same
as the vesting conditions of the original award immediately before the original award is modified. (3) The classification of the modified award as an equity
instrument or a liability instrument is the same as the classification of the original award immediately before the original award is modified. Note that the current
disclosure requirements in Topic 718 apply regardless of whether an entity is required to apply modification accounting under the amendments in ASU 2017-09.
ASU 2017-09 is effective for all annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effects of ASU 2017-09 on its financial statements.
Management has evaluated other recently issued accounting pronouncements and does not believe that they will have a significant impact on the financial
statements and related disclosures.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 4. Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, contract assets and liabilities consisted of the following:
December 31,
2017
2016
64,915 $
59,603
281,574
60,288

Accounts receivable - Commercial
Accounts receivable - Traceability
Total accounts receivable

$
$

346,489

$

119,891

Work-in-process - Traceability

$

-

$

285,278

Deferred revenues - Commercial
Deferred revenues - Traceability
Total deferred revenues

$

181,236
24,889

$

197,143
174,889

$

206,125

$

372,032

The increases (decreases) of accounts receivable and deferred revenue are primarily due to normal timing differences between the Company’s performance and the
customers’ payments. The deferred revenue is billed in accordance with certain contract milestones which may or may not have been fully earned at the time of
billing.
Note 5. Property and Equipment, Net
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, property and equipment consisted of the following:

Computers, equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Trade show booth
Total property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

$

$

Depreciation expense was $84,986 and $116,581 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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December 31,
2017
2016
376,688 $
371,149
23,037
23,037
24,962
424,687
394,186
(336,473)
(251,487)
88,214

$

142,699

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 6. Intangible Assets
The following table sets summarizes the Company’s intangible assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
December 31, 2017
Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)
Internet Domains
Total

15

Gross Carrying
Amount at
December 31,
2016

Accumulated
Amortization

$

24,750

$

$

24,750

$

Net
Book Value

(4,837) $
(4,837) $

19,913
19,913

December 31,2016
Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)
Internet Domains
Total

15

Gross Carrying
Amount at
December 31,
2015

Accumulated
Amortization

$

24,750

$

$

24,750

$

Net
Book Value

(3,187) $
(3,187) $

21,563
21,563

The Company recorded amortization expense of $1,650 for each of the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Note 7. Accounts Payable
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, accounts payable consisted of the following:

Accounts payable
Credit card payable
Total

$
$

December 31,
2017
2016
427,563 $
620,285
142,007
101,464
569,570

$

721,749

Note 8. Stockholder’s Equity
Series A Preferred Stock and Warrants
On April 1, 2015, the Company sold to an accredited investor an aggregate of 100,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock with warrants to purchase 16,293 shares
of common stock for gross proceeds of $5,000,000. The warrants have a five-year term expiring on March 31, 2020.
The Series A Preferred Shares are convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common stock at an initial conversion price of $7.67 per share if all 100,000
shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are converted (converted into 651,890 common shares). If fewer than 100,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock are
converted, the conversion price shall be adjusted to $8.82 per share. The shares issuable upon conversion are subject to adjustment for stock splits and stock
dividends. (See Note 15).
Option Exercises
During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, option holders exercised 2,498 and 258,910 options to purchase shares of common stock for total proceeds
of $2,498 and $258,909.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 9. Stock Based Compensation
2014 Stock Incentive Plan
The Company has a stock-based compensation plan, which is described as follows:
On October 22, 2014, the Company approved and adopted the 2014 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”). The 2014 Plan set aside and reserved 600,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock for grant and issuance in accordance with its terms and conditions. Persons eligible to receive awards from the 2014 Plan include
employees (including officers and directors) of the Company or its affiliates and consultants who provide significant services to the Company or its affiliates (the
“Grantees”). The 2014 Plan permits the Company to issue to Grantees qualified and/or non-qualified options to purchase the Company’s common stock, restricted
common stock, performance units, and performance shares. The term of each award under the 2014 Plan shall be no more than ten years from the date of grant
thereof. The Company’s Board of Directors or a committee designated by the Board of Directors is responsible for administration of the 2014 Plan and has the sole
discretion to determine which Grantees will be granted awards and the terms and conditions of the awards granted. The 2014 Plan will annually increase the
number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance thereunder to 15% of the Company’s common stock outstanding as of the first day of each calendar
year beginning January 1, 2016.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, there were no stock option grants made pursuant to the 2014 Plan. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company
granted options to purchase 72,840 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $7.67 per share. In connection with issuances under the 2014 Plan, the Company
recorded stock compensation expense of $40,981 and $338,477 which is included in selling, general and administrative expense for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively. Unamortized stock compensation costs related to these awards of $66,412 will be recognized over the anticipated vesting period. For
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the option holders exercised options to purchase 2,498 and 258,910 shares of common stock, respectively.
The Company accounts for share-based payments pursuant to ASC 718, “Stock Compensation” and, accordingly, the Company records stock compensation
expense for share-based awards based upon an assessment of the grant date fair value for stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair
value of stock options under the Black-Scholes model requires management to make assumptions regarding projected employee stock option exercise behaviors,
risk-free interest rates, volatility of the Company’s stock price and expected dividends. The Company generally recognizes stock compensation expense on the
grant date and over the period of vesting or period that services will be provided.
The following table summarizes stock option activity under the 2014 Plan for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Options for
Common Shares
515,991
72,840
(258,910)
(3,009)
326,912
(2,498)
(13,979)

Outstanding as of January 1, 2016
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited, cancelled, expired
Outstanding as of December 31, 2016
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited, cancelled, expired
Outstanding as of December 31, 2017
Vested at December 31, 2017
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Weighted Average
Remaining
Exercise Price Contractual Term
$
1.60
9.18
$
7.67
9.48
$
1.00
8.17
$
7.23
$
3.39
8.57
$
1.04
7.17
$
6.97
-

310,435

$

3.25

8.21

230,823

$

2.11

7.28

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following table summarizes the assumptions used to compute the fair value of options granted to employees:

Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of options - years
Expected stock price volatility
Expected dividend yield

March 1, 2015
1.62% to 1.74%
5.50 to 6.25
53.00%
0.00%

May 11, 2015 to
December 16,
2015
1.59% to 1.98%
6.25
51.00% to 58.00%
0.00%

January 4, 2016
to August 1,
2016
1.10% to 1.94%
6.25
55.00% to 57.00%
0.00%

Management
Awards
1.74% to 1.75%
6.25
56.00% to 57.00%
0.00%

Management Awards
On September 1, 2015 and November 1, 2015, the Board approved individual employee option grants (the “Executive Grants”) for three executives (the
“Executives”). Pursuant to the Executive Grants, the Executives were each granted stock options to purchase 146,507 shares (totaling 439,521 shares) of the
Company’s common stock (the “Option”) at an exercise price equal to approximately $7.67. The Options vest as to 25% of the shares subject to the Options, one
year after the date of grant and then in equal quarterly installments for the three years thereafter, subject to the Executive’s continued employment with the
Company.
In connection with such awards, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $25,255 and $25,255 which is included in selling, general and
administrative expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Unamortized stock compensation costs related to these awards of $50,510
will be recognized over the anticipated vesting period. As of December 31, 2017, 219,761 shares are vested related to these awards.
The Company accounts for share-based payments pursuant to ASC 718, “Stock Compensation” and, accordingly, the Company records stock compensation
expense for share-based awards based upon an assessment of the grant date fair value for stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair
value of stock options under the Black-Scholes model requires management to make assumptions regarding projected employee stock option exercise behaviors,
risk-free interest rates, volatility of the Company’s stock price and expected dividends. The Company generally recognizes stock compensation expense on the
grant date and over the period of vesting or period that services will be provided.
The table below reflects the costs to be recognized for both the 2014 Plan and the Executive Grants in the future:
Future Expense

Years Ending December 31,
2018
2019
2020
Total

14

2014
Stock Option
Plan
$
29,610
19,436
17,366

Executive
Options
$
25,255
25,255
-

$

$

$

$

66,412

50,510

Total
54,865
44,691
17,366
116,922

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 10. Revenues
The following table shows the Company’s revenues disaggregated according to the timing of the transfer of services for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively:
Years Ended December 31,
2017
2016
Revenue recognized at a point in time
Commercial revenue
Traceability revenue
Vendor referral revenue

$

Revenue recognized over time
Commercial revenue
Traceability revenue
UCS revenue

1,046,676
1,438,636
40,396
2,525,708

$

4,872,972
334,102
54,701
5,261,775

Total

$

7,787,483

834,606
217,030
77,934
1,129,570

3,932,515
212,998
4,145,513
$

5,275,083

Note 11. Income Taxes
No provision for U.S. federal or state income taxes has been recorded as the Company has incurred net operating losses since inception. Significant components of
the Company’s net deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of income tax loss carryforwards and Stock Option expense. These
amounts are available for carryforward for use in offsetting taxable income of future years through 2035. Realization of the future tax benefits is dependent on the
Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income within the carry-forward period. Utilization of the net operating loss carry-forwards may be subject to a
substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar state provisions.
Due to the Company’s history of operating losses, these deferred tax assets arising from the future tax benefits are currently not likely to be realized and are thus
reduced to zero by an offsetting valuation allowance. As a result, there is no provision for income taxes.
For the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $3,612,000 and $3,377,000, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the valuation allowance decreased by approximately $487,000 and increased by approximately $777,000,
respectively. The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which was enacted on December 22, 2017, reduced the federal corporate income tax rate from a maximum of 35% to a
flat rate of 21%. The decrease in the deferred tax asset from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2017 and corresponding change in the valuation allowance is
primarily due to the adjustment of the corporate tax rate in accordance with the new law. Utilization of these net loss carry forwards is subject to the limitations of
Internal Revenue Code Section 382. The Company applied a 100% valuation reserve against the deferred tax benefit as the realization of the benefit is not certain.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The tax effect of significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016, are as follows:
December 31,
2017
2016
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward
Other
Accounts receivable reserve
Depreciation and amortization
Stock option expense
Total gross deferred tax assets
Less: Deferred tax asset valuation allowance
Total net deferred tax assets

$

$

795,000 $
2,000
17,000
11,000
11,000
836,000
(836,000)
-

$

1,266,000
2,000
26,000
20,000
9,000
1,323,000
(1,323,000)
-

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases
The Company leases commercial office space in Ft. Lauderdale, FL that expires in March 2019. The Company also leases its office space in Olympia, WA which
originally expired in July 2016, but the contract was amended to extend the contract, expiring in February 2021. The Company also leases its Hawaii office space
that expires in May 2020. The Company also subleases its Denver, CO office space which expired in October 2017, but the contract was amended to extend for 25
months, thus expiring in November 2019.
Rent expense incurred for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $374,809 and $354,060, respectively.
The table below shows the future minimum rental payments under the leases as follows:
Future Minimum
Lease Payments
$
383,123
184,623
50,052
7,426

Years Ending December 31,
2018
2019
2020
2021

$

625,224

Management Contracts
In connection with the Management Awards discussed above (See Note 9), the Executives signed management contracts with three-year terms.
Legal Proceedings
Occasionally, the Company may be involved in claims and legal proceedings arising from the ordinary course of its business. The Company records a provision for
a liability when it believes that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If these estimates and assumptions
change or prove to be incorrect, it could have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. Contingencies are inherently unpredictable and the
assessments of the value can involve a series of complex judgments about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Currently, twenty-nine states, the District of Columbia and the United States territories of Guam and Puerto Rico allow individuals to use medicinal cannabis
legally. Furthermore, eight states, and the District of Columbia have enacted laws that allow recreational adult use of cannabis. Continued growth and innovation in
the cannabis industry is dependent upon continued legislative acceptance and approval of cannabis use at the state level. Legislative, regulatory and political factors
could slow or halt development of the industry, which would negatively impact our business.
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company was involved in certain lawsuits all of which were resolved prior to December 31, 2017. Any
settlements incurred by the Company were included in professional and legal fees.
Note 13. Related Party Transactions
On April 15, 2015, the Company loaned $1,000,000 to one of its founding Shareholders. The Shareholder promised to pay the principal amount, together with
interest at an annual rate of 1.5%, payable in one balloon payment on April 15, 2017. The loan was secured by 125,000 shares of Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc.
As of December 31, 2016, the Shareholder satisfied their obligation under the loan in full.
On March 13, 2015, the Company loaned a second Shareholder $15,000. The loan did not bear interest and was payable in less than one year. During 2016, the
Company wrote off the outstanding loan receivable to compensation expense.
Note 14. Concentrations and Credit Risk
The Company operates solely within the cannabis industry within the United States of America and territories of the United States as well as in Canada and
Australia. The Company grants credit to certain customers, substantially all of whom are small to medium sized business or governmental agencies.
The Company maintains its cash balance at financial institutions located in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida. The balance is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000. There was $246,951 and $718,297 in excess of the FDIC insurance as December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, the state of Hawaii accounted for approximately 66.11% and 25.98% of accounts receivable.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, New York and Washington state, respectively, accounted for approximately 16.50% and 6.60% of total revenues.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, two vendors accounted for approximately 75.35% and 68.21% of accounts payable.
Note 15. Subsequent Events
Helix TCS, Inc. Acquisition
On March 3, 2018, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Helix TCS, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Helix Acquisition Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company, with the Company surviving
the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Helix TCS, Inc.
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Helix TCS, Inc. will issue to the Company equityholders an amount of unregistered shares of Helix TCS, Inc.’s common stock
and assume options and warrants to acquire shares of the Helix TCS, Inc.’s common stock so that the Company equityholders will own 48% of Helix TCS, Inc. on
a fully diluted basis immediately after the merger. In particular, at the time of the merger, each share of the Company Series A Preferred Stock and each share of
the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the merger will automatically convert into that number of shares of Helix TCS, Inc.
common stock specified in the Merger Agreement. Also, all issued and outstanding options and warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock will
convert into options and warrants to purchase shares of Helix TCS, Inc.’s common stock upon the same terms as provided in those options and warrants, subject to
share and price adjustments as provided in the Merger Agreement. Helix TCS, Inc. also will assume all of the Company’s outstanding restricted stock purchase
agreements or other agreements providing for risk of forfeiture of issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to share and price
adjustments as provided in the Merger Agreement.
To secure indemnification obligations of the Company’s shareholders to Helix TCS, Inc. under the Merger Agreement, 4% of Helix TCS, Inc. shares to be issued
to the Company’s shareholders will be held back and Helix TCS, Inc. will be entitled to retain such number of the holdback shares as necessary to satisfy those
indemnification obligations. Any holdback shares that remain after satisfaction of any indemnification obligations will be released 18 months after the closing date
of the merger.
On June 1, 2018, the Company closed the merger. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Company stockholders received 38,184,985 unregistered shares of Helix
TCS, Inc. common stock, of which 1,852,677 shares were held back to satisfy indemnification obligations in the Merger Agreement, if necessary. Helix TCS, Inc.
also assumed outstanding Company options exercisable for 8,132,410 shares of common stock under the BioTrackTHC Stock Plan.
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 13, 2018, the date on which these financial statements were available to be issued. No significant
subsequent events to this date would have had a material impact on the Company’s financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017 other than
described above.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Loans and advances receivable
Work-in-process - Traceability
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Total assets

745,733
72,211
1,754
71,797
163,358
1,054,853

$

70,766
19,500

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Sales tax payable
Deferred revenues
Total current liabilities

811,827
346,489
134,269
1,292,585
88,214
19,913

$

1,145,119

$

1,400,712

$

445,482
19,718
95,153
560,353

$

569,570
13,924
206,125
789,619

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock (Class A), $50 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 2,868,295 shares issued and outstanding as of March 31,
2018; 2,868,195 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2017
Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$
See accompanying notes to the unaudited financial statements

1

5,000,000

5,000,000

28,683
1,279,078
(5,722,995)
584,766

28,682
1,265,263
(5,682,852)
611,093

1,145,119

$

1,400,712

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2018
2017
Revenues:
Commercial revenue - private-sector
Traceability revenue - public-sector
Vendor referral revenue
UCS revenue
Total revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

$

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Selling, general and administrative
Rent and occupancy
Professional and legal fees
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

1,608,386
76,131
13,567
75,052
1,773,136
697,362
1,075,774

$

613,849
330,521
101,929
48,101
21,544
1,115,944

Loss from operations

(40,170)

Other income:
Interest income
Net loss

27
$
See accompanying notes to the unaudited financial statements

2

(40,143) $

1,586,975
57,339
12,551
1,656,865
661,936
994,929

729,735
427,739
96,990
48,327
21,659
1,324,450
(329,521)

124
(329,397)

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 2017
Issuance of common stock under
option plan

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
2,868,195 $
28,682

Preferred Stock Series A
Shares
Amount
100,000 $ 5,000,000

Additional Paid$

in Capital
1,265,263

Accumulated
$

Total
Stockholders'

Deficit
(5,682,852) $

Equity
611,093

100

1

-

-

99

-

100

Stock option compensation expense

-

-

-

-

13,716

-

13,716

Net loss

-

-

-

-

-

28,683

100,000

Balance at March 31, 2018

2,868,295

$

$

5,000,000

$

See accompanying notes to the unaudited financial statements

3

1,279,078

$

(40,143)

(40,143)

(5,722,995) $

584,766

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2018
2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Employee stock compensation expense
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Loans and advances receivable
Work-in-process - Traceability
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Sales tax payable
Deferred revenues
Net cash used in operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under option plan
Net cash provided by financing activities

(40,143) $
21,544
22,645
13,716

21,660
28,108
16,559

251,633
(1,754)
(71,797)
(29,089)
(124,088)
5,794
(110,972)
(62,511)

(8,059)
6,100
4,305
43,925
(351,535)
(1,573)
(136,039)
(705,946)

(3,683)
(3,683)

(1,641)
(1,641)

100
100

Net decrease in cash

(66,094)

Cash, beginning of period

811,827

Cash, end of period

$
See accompanying notes to the unaudited financial statements

4

(329,397)

745,733

2,418
2,418
(705,169)
1,316,454
$

611,285

BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Description of Organization and Business
Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. (the "Company" or “BioTrack”) was originally formed as Bio-Tech Medical Software, LLC on January 31, 2007 in the State of
Florida. Pursuant to a Certificate of Conversion filed with the Secretary of State on February 28, 2008, the Company filed Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation to change its entity type to a corporation, with 100,000 Authorized shares of $1.00 par value Common Stock. The Company filed a Second Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the Secretary of State on February 8, 2013 increasing the Authorized Capital Stock of the Company to 21,000,000
shares, consisting of (i) 20,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $01 per share and (ii) 1,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share. A
Third Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation were filed by the Company with the Secretary of State on April 3, 2015. This amendment designated 100,000
shares of the Preferred Stock as Series A Preferred Stock with an original issue price of $50 per share. (See Note 8).
The Company develops and licenses inventory management, product traceability and point-of-sale software systems to the cannabis industry. BioTrackTHC, the
private sector compliance software, is licensed to customers such as dispensaries, cultivators, and processors. Traceability, the public-sector compliance software,
is sold to State governmental agencies. BioTrackTHC is an enterprise level compliance software that tracks from the point of inception (cannabis tissue, seeds, and
clones) through the plants lifecycle, capturing necessary data points along the way. Every fraction of gram is tracked during the harvest, conversion, and waste
process. Traceability is used by governmental agencies to track licensee activity at every step of the cultivation and dispensation process.
The Company contracts with customers located in the United States of America and territories of the United States, as well as in Canada and Australia, where
either medical and/or recreational cannabis sales are legal. The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Ft. Lauderdale, FL. and has sales, training and
customer support representatives in Denver, CO, Honolulu, HI and Olympia, WA.
On March 3, 2018, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Helix TCS, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Helix Acquisition Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company, with the Company surviving
the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Helix TCS, Inc.
Note 2. Going Concern Analysis
During the second quarter of 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of
Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern . This update provides guidance under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”) on management’s responsibility in evaluating whether there is substantial doubt about a company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and about related footnote disclosures. Under this standard, the Company is required to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern each reporting period, including interim periods. In evaluating the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, management considered the
Company’s current financial condition and liquidity sources, including current funds available, forecasted future cash flows and the Company’s conditional and
unconditional obligations.
The Company is subject to a number of risks similar to those of other software development businesses in the cannabis industry, including its dependence on key
individuals, uncertainty of product development and generation of revenues, dependence on outside sources of capital, risks associated with research, development,
and testing and the Company’s ability to maintain and grow its subscriber base. The attainment of profitable operations is dependent on future events, including
obtaining adequate financing to fulfill the Company’s growth and operating activities and generating a level of revenues adequate to support the Company’s cost
structure.
The Company has experienced net losses and significant cash outflows from cash used in operating activities over the past years. As of and for the three months
ended March 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $5,722,995, a net loss of $40,143, and net cash used in operating activities of $62,511.
The Company expects to continue to incur net losses and have significant cash outflows for at least the next twelve months. Management has evaluated the
significance of the conditions described above in relation to the Company’s ability to meet its obligations and concluded that, without additional funding, the
Company may not have sufficient funds to meet its obligations within one year from the date the financial statements were issued. The Company expects to finance
future cash needs from the results of operations and, depending on the results of operations, the Company may need additional equity or debt financing until the
Company can achieve profitability and positive cash flows from operating activities, if ever.
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Considering the above, there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern through August 13, 2019 without raising additional
funding or eliminating certain expense items. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’s assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. A
successful transition to attaining profitable operations is dependent upon achieving a level of positive cash flows adequate to support the Company’s cost structure.
The Company’s future capital requirements for its operations will depend on many factors, including the profitability of its businesses, and the costs of operations.
Management’s plans include continuing its investment in the expansion of operations in new states, growing and diversifying its revenue streams, selectively
reducing expenses, and seeking additional funding with potential investors. Additionally, if the Company’s actual revenues are less than forecasted, the Company
anticipates that variable expenses will also decline, and the Company’s management will implement expense reduction as necessary. The Company is evaluating
other measures to further improve its liquidity. The Company’s management believes that these actions will enable the Company to meet its liquidity requirements
through August 13, 2019, however, there is no assurance that the Company will generate sufficient revenue or raise sufficient capital to fund operations.
Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes in estimates and assumptions are reflected
in reported results in the period in which they become known. Significant estimates made by management include, but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful
accounts, estimated useful lives of property, equipment and intangible assets, valuation of stock options, revenue recognition, sales commissions and bonuses,
stock-based compensation, and the valuation of deferred taxes. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical
experience and other factors, including the current economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could differ from management’s estimates and those differences could be material.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all unrestricted, highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. There
were no cash equivalents as of March 31, 2018 or December 31, 2017.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of internet domain costs and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives of 15 years. The Company periodically reviews the estimated useful lives of intangible assets and makes adjustments when events indicate
that a shorter life is appropriate.
The Company recorded amortization expense of $413 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The Company monitors the carrying value of long-lived assets for potential impairment based on whether certain triggering events have occurred. These events
include current period losses or a projection of continuing losses or a significant decrease in the market value of an asset. When a triggering event occurs, an
impairment calculation is performed, comparing projected undiscounted future cash flows, utilizing current cash flow information and expected growth rates, to the
respective carrying value. If the Company identifies impairment for long-lived assets to be held and used, the Company compares the assets’ current carrying value
to the assets’ fair value. Fair value is based on current market values or discounted future cash flows. The Company records impairment when the carrying value
exceeds fair market value.
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable from the private-sector, public-sector and on-going training, support and software customization services are stated at the invoiced amount,
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company monitors its accounts receivable balances on an ongoing basis to ensure that they are collectible. The
Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on its historical experience of the relationship between actual bad debts and net credit sales and
significant account balances that remain outstanding beyond the normal credit terms.
Management charges balances off against the allowance when they are contractually past due and it is probable that they will not be collected.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts was $97,985 and $75,564 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. Bad debt expense was $22,645 and $28,108 for
the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Revenue Recognition
The Company generates revenue from developing and licensing seed to sale cannabis compliance software to both private-sector and public-sector (government
agencies) businesses that are involved in cannabis related operations. The Company also generates revenue from on-going training, support and software
customization services.
The private-sector software entails cultivation tracking, inventory management, point of sale and analytic reporting to assist businesses in meeting their compliance
requirements and effectively manage their businesses. Customers within the private sector business are charged an initial one-time installation fee and the revenues
associated with these services are recognized upon completion of installation and configuration at a point in time. After the installation and configuration of the
software is completed, the customer is invoiced monthly and revenues associated with these services are recognized monthly over a period of time in which the
customer continues to use the software and related services.
The public-sector software assists government agencies in efficient oversight of cannabis related business under their jurisdiction. Revenues associated with
governmental contracts are longer-term in nature and recognized upon completion of certain milestones over a period of time or on a completed-contract basis at a
point in time. The Company considers the contract to be complete when all significant costs have been incurred and the customer accepts the project. Costs
incurred prior to the customer accepting the project are deferred and reflected on the Balance Sheet as Work-in-process – Traceability.
Additionally, revenues associated with on-going training, support and software customization services provided to both the private and public sectors are
recognized monthly on a straight-line basis over the contract period. Payment received in advance for installation, training or other performance obligations that
are not completed under the terms of the contract are unearned and are recorded as deferred revenues until the services are complete.
Expenses
Cost of Revenue
The cost of revenue is the total cost incurred to obtain a sale and the cost of the goods or services sold. Cost of revenue primarily consisted of hourly compensation
for personnel that are directly involved in the creation and development of the software. Additionally, hosting expense is included in cost of revenue. These costs
are deferred and are expensed at the time the related revenue is recognized.
Operating Expenses
Operating expenses encompass selling general and administrative expenses, salaries and wages, rent and occupancy, professional and legal fees and depreciation
and amortization. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of computer/software expenses, telephone/network expenses, stock compensation
expense, and travel expenses. Professional services are principally comprised of outside legal, audit, and consulting services.
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Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of the assets range from
three to seven years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Upon sale or retirement of property and equipment, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in current earnings.
Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Advertising expense for the three months ended March 31,
2018 and 2017 amounted to $7,494 and $9,404, respectively.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the financial statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are
expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The Company has
incurred net operating loss for financial-reporting and tax-reporting purposes. Accordingly, for Federal and state income tax purposes, the benefit for income taxes
has been offset entirely by a valuation allowance against the related federal and state deferred tax asset for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.
Stock-based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to employees in conformity with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, Stock-Based Compensation . Stock based
compensation expense recognized during the year includes compensation expense for all share-based payments based on a grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions in the FASB guidance for stock compensation. The grant date is the date at which an employer and employee reach a mutual
understanding of the key terms and conditions of a share-based payment award.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (“ASC Topic 820”), provides a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.
ASC Topic 820 defines the fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between (1) market participant assumptions developed
based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions developed
based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs).
The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as
follows:
Level 1 — Assets and liabilities with unadjusted, quoted prices listed on active market exchanges. Inputs to the fair value measurement are observable
inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs to the fair value measurement are determined using prices for recently traded assets and liabilities with similar underlying terms, as
well as direct or indirect observable inputs, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.
Level 3 — Inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable inputs, such as estimates, assumptions, and valuation techniques when little or no
market data exists for the assets or liabilities.
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Certain assets and liabilities, including cash, accounts receivable, work-in-process, loans and advances receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, sales tax payable and deferred revenues, of the Company are required to be recorded at fair value either on a recurring or non-recurring basis. Fair value
is determined based on the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction based on market participants.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”), which supersedes
nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP. The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are
transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 defines a
five-step process to achieve this core principle and, in doing so, more judgment and estimates may be required within the revenue recognition process than are
required under existing GAAP. In addition, this guidance requires new or expanded disclosures related to the judgments made by companies when following this
framework and additional quantitative disclosures regarding contract balances and remaining performance obligations. ASU 2014-09 may be applied using either a
full retrospective approach, under which all years included in the financial statements will be presented under the revised guidance, or a modified retrospective
approach, under which financial statements will be prepared under the revised guidance for the year of adoption, but not for prior years. Under the latter method,
entities will recognize a cumulative catch-up adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the effective date for contracts that still require performance
by the entity. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2018 for nonpublic companies. Early adoption is only permitted as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The
Company developed an implementation plan to adopt this new guidance, which included an assessment of the impact of the new guidance on the Company’s
financial position and results of operations. On January 1, 2017, the Company adopted the new accounting standard ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and for all open contracts and related amendments as of January 1, 2017 using the full retrospective method. The Company has not previously prepared
financial statements under GAAP and accordingly has not reported revenues under ASC 605. As a result, there is no transition effect resulting from the application
of ASC 606.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, (“ASC 842”), which supersedes FASB ASC 840, Leases and provides principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. The new standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as
either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will
determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is also required
to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of greater than twelve months regardless of classification. Leases with a term of twelve
months or less will be accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating leases. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2020 for nonpublic companies. The Company is currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of ASU 2016-02 on its financial statements.
In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No 2017-09 “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting” (ASU 2017-09). ASU
2017-09 provides clarity and reduces both (i) diversity in practice and (ii) cost and complexity when applying the guidance in Topic 718, Compensation-Stock
Compensation, to a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award. The amendments in ASU 2017-09 provide guidance about which changes to
the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. An entity should account for the effects of
a modification unless all three of the following are met: (1) The fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if such an alternative measurement method is
used) of the modified award is the same as the fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if such an alternative measurement is used) of the original award
immediately before the original award is modified. If the modification does not affect any of the inputs to the valuation technique that the entity uses to value the
award, the entity is not required to estimate the value immediately before and after the modification. (2) The vesting conditions of the modified award are the same
as the vesting conditions of the original award immediately before the original award is modified. (3) The classification of the modified award as an equity
instrument or a liability instrument is the same as the classification of the original award immediately before the original award is modified. Note that the current
disclosure requirements in Topic 718 apply regardless of whether an entity is required to apply modification accounting under the amendments in ASU 2017-09.
ASU 2017-09 is effective for all annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effects of ASU 2017-09 on its financial statements.
Management has evaluated other recently issued accounting pronouncements and does not believe that they will have a significant impact on the financial
statements and related disclosures.
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Note 4. Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities
As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, contract assets and liabilities consisted of the following:
March 31,
2018
$
56,778
15,433

December 31,
2017
$
64,915
281,574

$

72,211

$

346,489

Work-in-process - Traceability

$

71,797

$

-

Deferred revenues - Commercial
Deferred revenues - Traceability
Total deferred revenues

$

79,597
15,556

$

181,236
24,889

$

95,153

$

206,125

Accounts receivable - Commercial
Accounts receivable - Traceability
Total accounts receivable

The increases (decreases) of accounts receivable and deferred revenue are primarily due to normal timing differences between the Company’s performance and the
customers’ payments. The deferred revenue is billed in accordance with certain contract milestones which may or may not have been fully earned at the time of
billing.
Note 5. Property and Equipment, Net
At March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, property and equipment consisted of the following:
March 31,
December 31,
2018
2017
$
380,371 $
376,688
23,037
23,037
24,962
24,962
428,370
424,687
(357,604)
(336,473)

Computers, equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Trade show booth
Total property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

$

Depreciation expense was $21,131 and $21,247 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Note 6. Intangible Assets
The following table sets summarizes the Company’s intangible assets as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
March 31, 2018
Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)
Internet Domains
Total

15

Gross Carrying
Amount at
December 31,
2017

Accumulated
Amortization

$

24,750

$

$

24,750

$

Net
Book Value

(5,250) $
(5,250) $

19,500
19,500

December 31, 2017
Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)
Internet Domains
Total

15

Gross Carrying
Amount at
December 31,
2016

Accumulated
Amortization

$

24,750

$

$

24,750

$

Net
Book Value

(4,837) $
(4,837) $

19,913
19,913

The Company recorded amortization expense of $413 for each of the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Note 7. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following:

Accounts payable
Credit card payable
Accrued expenses
Total

March 31,
2018
$
216,654
152,471
76,357

December 31,
2017
$
427,563
142,007
-

$

$

445,482

569,570

Note 8. Stockholder’s Equity
Series A Preferred Stock and Warrants
On April 1, 2015, the Company sold to an accredited investor an aggregate of 100,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock with warrants to purchase 16,293 shares
of common stock for gross proceeds of $5,000,000. The warrants have a five-year term expiring on March 31, 2020.
The Series A Preferred Shares are convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common stock at an initial conversion price of $7.67 per share if all 100,000
shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are converted (converted into 651,890 common shares). If fewer than 100,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock are
converted, the conversion price shall be adjusted to $8.82 per share. The shares issuable upon conversion are subject to adjustment for stock splits and stock
dividends. (See Note 14).
Option Exercises
During the three months ended March 31, 2018, option holders exercised 100 options to purchase shares of common stock for total proceeds of $100.
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Note 9. Stock Based Compensation
2014 Stock Incentive Plan
The Company has a stock-based compensation plan, which is described as follows:
On October 22, 2014, the Company approved and adopted the 2014 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”). The 2014 Plan set aside and reserved 600,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock for grant and issuance in accordance with its terms and conditions. Persons eligible to receive awards from the 2014 Plan include
employees (including officers and directors) of the Company or its affiliates and consultants who provide significant services to the Company or its affiliates (the
“Grantees”). The 2014 Plan permits the Company to issue to Grantees qualified and/or non-qualified options to purchase the Company’s common stock, restricted
common stock, performance units, and performance shares. The term of each award under the 2014 Plan shall be no more than ten years from the date of grant
thereof. The Company’s Board of Directors or a committee designated by the Board of Directors is responsible for administration of the 2014 Plan and has the sole
discretion to determine which Grantees will be granted awards and the terms and conditions of the awards granted. The 2014 Plan will annually increase the
number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance thereunder to 15% of the Company’s common stock outstanding as of the first day of each calendar
year beginning January 1, 2016.
For the three months ended March 31, 2018, there were no stock option grants made pursuant to the 2014 Plan. In connection with issuances under the 2014 Plan,
the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $7,402 and $10,245 which is included in selling, general and administrative expense for the three months
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Unamortized stock compensation costs related to these awards of $59,010 will be recognized over the anticipated
vesting period. For the three months ended March 31, 2018, the option holders exercised options to purchase 100 shares of common stock.
The Company accounts for share-based payments pursuant to ASC 718, “Stock Compensation” and, accordingly, the Company records stock compensation
expense for share-based awards based upon an assessment of the grant date fair value for stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair
value of stock options under the Black-Scholes model requires management to make assumptions regarding projected employee stock option exercise behaviors,
risk-free interest rates, volatility of the Company’s stock price and expected dividends. The Company generally recognizes stock compensation expense on the
grant date and over the period of vesting or period that services will be provided.
The following table summarizes stock option activity under the 2014 Plan for the three months ended March 31, 2018:
Weighted Average
Options
for Common
Remaining
Shares
Exercise Price
Contractual Term
310,435 $
3.25
8.21
(100) $
1.00
6.92
(5,152) $
6.50
-

Outstanding as of January 1, 2018
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited, cancelled, expired
Outstanding as of March 31, 2018
Vested at March 31, 2018
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305,183

$

3.20

8.07

230,723

$

2.11

7.03
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The following table summarizes the assumptions used to compute the fair value of options granted to employees:

Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of options - years
Expected stock price volatility
Expected dividend yield

March 1, 2015
1.62% to 1.74%
5.50 to 6.25
53.00%
0.00%

May 11, 2015 to
December 16,
2015
1.59% to 1.98%
6.25
51.00% to 58.00%
0.00%

January 4, 2016
to August 1,
2016
1.10% to 1.94%
6.25
55.00% to 57.00%
0.00%

Management
Awards
1.74% to 1.75%
6.25
56.00% to 57.00%
0.00%

Management Awards
On September 1, 2015 and November 1, 2015, the Board approved individual employee option grants (the “Executive Grants”) for three executives (the
“Executives”). Pursuant to the Executive Grants, the Executives were each granted stock options to purchase 146,507 shares (totaling 439,521 shares) of the
Company’s common stock (the “Option”) at an exercise price equal to approximately $7.67. The Options vest as to 25% of the shares subject to the Options, one
year after the date of grant and then in equal quarterly installments for the three years thereafter, subject to the Executive’s continued employment with the
Company.
In connection with such awards, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $6,314 and $6,314 which is included in selling, general and administrative
expense for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Unamortized stock compensation costs related to these awards of $44,196 will be
recognized over the anticipated vesting period. As of March 31, 2018, 219,761 shares are vested related to these awards.
The Company accounts for share-based payments pursuant to ASC 718, “Stock Compensation” and, accordingly, the Company records stock compensation
expense for share-based awards based upon an assessment of the grant date fair value for stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair
value of stock options under the Black-Scholes model requires management to make assumptions regarding projected employee stock option exercise behaviors,
risk-free interest rates, volatility of the Company’s stock price and expected dividends. The Company generally recognizes stock compensation expense on the
grant date and over the period of vesting or period that services will be provided.
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Note 10. Revenues
The following table shows the Company’s revenues disaggregated according to the timing of the transfer of services for the three months ended March 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively:
For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018
2017
Revenue recognized at a point in time
Commercial revenue
Traceability revenue
Vendor referral revenue

$

Revenue recognized over time
Commercial revenue
Traceability revenue
UCS revenue

336,371
13,567
349,938

$

1,272,015
76,131
75,052
1,423,198

Total

$

1,773,136

430,437
12,551
442,988

1,156,538
57,339
1,213,877
$

1,656,865

Note 11. Income Taxes
No provision for U.S. federal or state income taxes has been recorded as the Company has incurred net operating losses since inception. Significant components of
the Company’s net deferred income tax assets for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of income tax loss carryforwards and Stock Option
expense. These amounts are available for carryforward for use in offsetting taxable income of future years through 2035. Realization of the future tax benefits is
dependent on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income within the carry-forward period. Utilization of the net operating loss carry-forwards may
be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar state
provisions. Due to the Company’s history of operating losses, these deferred tax assets arising from the future tax benefits are currently not likely to be realized and
are thus reduced to zero by an offsetting valuation allowance. As a result, there is no provision for income taxes.
For the three months ended March 31, 2018, and 2017, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $3,380,000 and $3,615,000,
respectively. During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the valuation allowance increased by approximately $7,000 and $116,000, respectively.
The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which was enacted on December 22, 2017, reduced the federal corporate income tax rate from a maximum of 35% to a flat rate of
21%. The decrease in the deferred tax asset from March 31, 2017 to March 31, 2018 and corresponding change in the valuation allowance is primarily due to the
adjustment of the corporate tax rate in accordance with the new law. Utilization of these net loss carry forwards is subject to the limitations of Internal Revenue
Code Section 382. The Company applied a 100% valuation reserve against the deferred tax benefit as the realization of the benefit is not certain.
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The tax effect of significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets at March 31, 2018 and 2017, are as follows:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2018
2017
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward
Other
Accounts receivable reserve
Depreciation
Stock option expense
Total gross deferred tax assets
Less: Deferred tax asset valuation allowance
Total net deferred tax assets

$

$

744,000 $
2,000
22,000
11,000
12,000
791,000
(791,000)
- $

1,355,000
3,000
49,000
20,000
12,000
1,439,000
(1,439,000)
-

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases
The Company leases commercial office space in Ft. Lauderdale, FL that expires in March 2019. The Company also leases its office space in Olympia, WA which
originally expired in July 2016, but the contract was amended to extend the contract, expiring in February 2021. The Company also leases its Hawaii office space
that expires in May 2020. The Company also subleases its Denver, CO office space which expired in October 2017, but the contract was amended to extend for 25
months, thus expiring in November 2019.
Rent expense incurred for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was $95,721 and $90,990, respectively.
The table below shows the future minimum rental payments under the leases as follows:
Payments due by period
$
383,536
145,844

Less than 1 year
1 to 3 years
Total

$

529,380

Management Contracts
In connection with the Management Awards discussed above (See Note 9), the Executives signed management contracts with three-year terms.
Legal Proceedings
Occasionally, the Company may be involved in claims and legal proceedings arising from the ordinary course of its business. The Company records a provision
for a liability when it believes that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If these estimates and
assumptions change or prove to be incorrect, it could have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. Contingencies are inherently unpredictable
and the assessments of the value can involve a series of complex judgments about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions.
Currently, twenty-nine states, the District of Columbia and the United States territories of Guam and Puerto Rico allow individuals to use medicinal cannabis
legally. Furthermore, eight states, and the District of Columbia have enacted laws that allow recreational adult use of cannabis. Continued growth and innovation
in the cannabis industry is dependent upon continued legislative acceptance and approval of cannabis use at the state level. Legislative, regulatory and political
factors could slow or halt development of the industry, which would negatively impact our business.
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BIO-TECH MEDICAL SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company was involved in certain lawsuits all of which were resolved prior to December 31, 2017. For the three
months ended March 31, 2018, the Company was not involved in any new lawsuits. Any settlements incurred by the Company were included in professional and
legal fees.
Note 13. Concentrations and Credit Risk
The Company operates solely within the cannabis industry within the United States of America and territories of the United States as well as in Canada and
Australia. The Company grants credit to certain customers, substantially all of whom are small to medium sized business or governmental agencies.
The Company maintains its cash balance at financial institutions located in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida. The balance is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000. There was $250,567 and $246,951 in excess of the FDIC insurance as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively.
As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, the state of Hawaii accounted for approximately 18.46% and 66.11% of accounts receivable.
As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, Hawaii accounted for approximately 3.47% and Washington state accounted for approximately 2.72% of total
revenues.
As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, three vendors accounted for approximately 54.51% and two vendors accounted for approximately
75.35% of accounts payable.
Note 14. Subsequent Events
Helix TCS, Inc. Acquisition
On March 3, 2018, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Helix TCS, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Helix Acquisition Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company, with the Company surviving
the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Helix TCS, Inc.
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Helix TCS, Inc. will issue to the Company equityholders an amount of unregistered shares of Helix TCS, Inc.’s common stock
and assume options and warrants to acquire shares of the Helix TCS, Inc.’s common stock so that the Company equityholders will own 48% of Helix TCS, Inc. on
a fully diluted basis immediately after the merger. In particular, at the time of the merger, each share of the Company Series A Preferred Stock and each share of
the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the merger will automatically convert into that number of shares of Helix TCS, Inc.
common stock specified in the Merger Agreement. Also, all issued and outstanding options and warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock will
convert into options and warrants to purchase shares of Helix TCS, Inc.’s common stock upon the same terms as provided in those options and warrants, subject to
share and price adjustments as provided in the Merger Agreement. Helix TCS, Inc. also will assume all of the Company’s outstanding restricted stock purchase
agreements or other agreements providing for risk of forfeiture of issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to share and price
adjustments as provided in the Merger Agreement.
To secure indemnification obligations of the Company’s shareholders to Helix TCS, Inc. under the Merger Agreement, 4% of Helix TCS, Inc. shares to be issued
to the Company’s shareholders will be held back and Helix TCS, Inc. will be entitled to retain such number of the holdback shares as necessary to satisfy those
indemnification obligations. Any holdback shares that remain after satisfaction of any indemnification obligations will be released 18 months after the closing date
of the merger.
On June 1, 2018, the Company closed the merger. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Company stockholders received 38,184,985 unregistered shares of Helix
TCS, Inc. common stock, of which 1,852,677 shares were held back to satisfy indemnification obligations in the Merger Agreement, if necessary. Helix TCS, Inc.
also assumed outstanding Company options exercisable for 8,132,410 shares of common stock under the BioTrackTHC Stock Plan.
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 13, 2018 , the date on which these financial statements were available to be issued. No significant
subsequent events to this date would have had a material impact on the Company’s financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2018 other
than described above.
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Exhibit 99.3
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information presents the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheets and statement
of operations based upon the combined historical financial statements of Helix TCS, Inc. (the “Company” or “Helix”), and Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc.
(“BioTrackTHC”) after giving effect to the business combination between Helix and BioTrackTHC and adjustments described in the accompanying notes.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheets of BioTrackTHC and the Company, as of March 31, 2018, has been prepared to reflect the effects of
the BioTrackTHC acquisition as if it occurred on January 1, 2017. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2017 and the three months ended March 31, 2018 combine the historical results and operations of BioTrackTHC and the Company giving effect to
the transaction as if it occurred on January 1, 2017.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the audited and unaudited historical financial statements of
each of Helix and BioTrackTHC and the notes thereto. Additional information about the basis of presentation of this information is provided in Note 2 hereto.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information was prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X. The unaudited pro forma
adjustments reflecting the transaction have been prepared in accordance with business combination accounting guidance as provided in Accounting Standards
Codification 805 and reflect the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the acquired assets and liabilities based upon the preliminary estimate of fair values,
using the assumptions set forth in the notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is provided for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating
results or financial position that would have occurred if the transaction had been completed as of the dates set forth above, nor is it indicative of the future results
or financial position of the combined company. In connection with the pro forma financial information, the Company allocated the purchase price using its best
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the pro forma acquisition price adjustments are preliminary and subject to further adjustments as additional information
becomes available and as additional analyses are performed. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information also does not give effect to the
potential impact of current financial conditions, any anticipated synergies, operating efficiencies or cost savings that may result from the transaction or any
integration costs. Furthermore, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations do not include certain nonrecurring charges and the related
tax effects which result directly from the transaction as described in the notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information.

HELIX TCS, INC.
PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2018
(UNAUDITED)

Helix

Bio-Tech
Medical
Software, Inc.

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Pro Forma
Combined

Notes

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Work-in-process
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Deposits and other assets
Total assets

378,538
673,908
1,052,446

$

165,451
2,872,683
83,042

745,733
73,965
71,797
163,358
1,054,853

$

70,766
19,500
-

(413,660)
54,462
(71,797)
188,257
(242,738)
1,486
13,317,547
39,135,007
-

$

4,173,622

$

1,145,119

$

$

479,195
80,250
53,598
6,087
8,260
351,560
235,377
125,000
1,452,890
2,792,217

$

445,482
95,153
19,718
560,353

$

(a), (b)
(a)
(a)
(a)

$

(a)
(c)
(a)

52,211,302

710,611
802,335
351,615
1,864,561
237,703
16,209,730
39,135,007
83,042

$

57,530,043

$

702,776
80,250
53,598
6,087
8,260
351,560
235,377
125,000
1,452,890
452,541
3,468,339

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Advances from related parties
Billings in excess of costs
Deferred rent
Notes payable, current portion
Obligation pursuant to acquisition
Convertible note payable, net of discount
Note payable - related party
Warrant obligations
Customer deposits
Sales Tax Payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock (Class A)
Preferred stock (Class B)
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

(a)

(a)
(a)

89,460
89,460

-

-

89,460
89,460

2,881,677

560,353

115,769

3,557,799

1,000
13,784
29,857
19,927,689
(18,680,385)
1,291,945
$

(221,901)
357,388
(19,718)
115,769

4,173,622

5,000,000
28,682
1,279,078
(5,722,994)
584,766
$

1,145,119

(5,000,000)
9,503
56,234,770
851,260
52,095,533
$

52,211,302

See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements
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(d)

1,000
13,784
68,042
77,441,537
(23,552,119)
53,972,244

(d)
(d)
(e)
$

57,530,043

HELIX TCS, INC.
PROFORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(UNAUDITED)
Bio-Tech
Medical
Software, Inc.

Helix
Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross margin
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Salaries and wages
Professional and legal fees
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

1,128,338
790,705
337,633

$

1,773,136
697,362
1,075,774

$

-

$

2,901,474
1,488,067
1,413,407

$

347,880
866,320
619,759
198,903
2,032,862

$

432,450
613,849
48,101
21,544
1,115,944

$

934,219
934,219

$

780,330
1,480,169
667,860
1,154,666
4,083,025

(1,695,229)

Net loss

(40,170)

$

577,016
118,506
976,679
(17,933)
(664,329)
266,613
1,256,552

$

$

(438,677)

$

Convertible preferred stock beneficial conversion feature accreted as
a deemed dividend

(14,998,505)
$

(15,437,182)

$

Net loss per common share - basic and diluted

$

(0.53)

$

29,076,641

27
27
(40,143)

(40,143)
-

$

$

(934,219)

(2,669,618)

$

577,016
118,506
976,679
(17,906)
(664,329)
266,613
1,256,579

$

(1,413,039)

(14,998,505)

$

(934,219)

$

(16,411,544)

$

(0.02)

$

(0.24)

38,184,985

See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements
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(f)

(934,219)

-

Net loss attributable to common shareholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic and diluted

Pro Forma
Combined

Notes

$

Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Change in fair value of convertible note
Change in fair value of note payable - related party
Change in fair value of warrant obligations
Interest (expense) income
Loss on impairment of Goodwill
Gain on reduction of obligation pursuant to acquisition
Other income, net

Pro Forma
Adjustments

67,261,626

HELIX TCS, INC.
PROFORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(UNAUDITED)
Bio-Tech
Medical
Software, Inc.

Helix
Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross margin
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Salaries and wages
Professional and legal fees
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

4,029,800
2,885,459
1,144,341

$

7,787,483
3,141,143
4,646,340

$

-

$

11,817,283
6,026,602
5,790,681

$

1,019,091
1,020,812
1,857,856
477,364
4,375,123

$

1,831,390
2,646,745
433,223
86,636
4,997,994

$

3,820,891
3,820,891

$

2,850,481
3,667,557
2,291,079
4,384,891
13,194,008

(3,230,782)

$

(1,201,004)
31,068
590,436
(674,313)
(2,232)
(4,611,395)
(1,503,876)
(7,371,316)

Net loss

(10,602,098)

Convertible preferred stock beneficial conversion feature accreted as
a deemed dividend

(21,976,881)

(351,654)

$

$

(32,578,979)

$

Net loss per common share - basic and diluted

$

(1.14)

$

(351,385)
-

-

$

(1,201,004)
31,068
590,436
(674,044)
(2,232)
(4,611,395)
(1,503,876)
(7,371,047)
(14,774,374)

-

(21,976,881)

$

(3,820,891)

$

(36,751,255)

$

(0.10)

$

(0.55)

38,184,985

See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements
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(7,403,327)

(3,820,891)

-

$

28,612,727

269
269

(f)

(3,820,891)

(351,385)

Net loss attributable to common shareholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic and diluted

Pro Forma
Combined

Notes

$

Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Change in fair value of convertible note
Change in fair value of convertible note - related party
Change in fair value of obligation to issue warrants
Interest (expense) income
Loss on sale of assets
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Loss on induced conversion of convertible notes
Other (expense) income, net

Pro Forma
Adjustments

66,797,712

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements
1. Description of Transaction
On March 3, 2018, Helix TCS, Inc. (“Parent” or the “Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Helix Acquisition Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. ( “BioTrackTHC”) and Terence J. Ferraro, as the representative
of the BioTrackTHC shareholders (the “Securityholder Representative”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into BioTrackTHC,
with BioTrackTHC surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”).
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger (the “Effective Time”), the Company issued to the BioTrackTHC stockholders an amount of
unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock and assumed options and warrants to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock so that the
BioTrackTHC stockholders and optionholders owned 48% of the Company on a fully diluted basis immediately after the Effective Time. In particular, at the
Effective Time, each share of BioTrackTHC Series A Preferred Stock and each share of BioTrackTHC common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to
the Effective Time (excluding any shares cancelled pursuant to the Merger Agreement and dissenting shares) automatically converted into that number of shares of
Company common stock specified in the Merger Agreement. Also, at the Effective Time, all issued and outstanding options and warrants to purchase shares of
BioTrackTHC common stock that did not otherwise terminate or expire by their terms converted into options and warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock upon the same terms as provided in those options and warrants, subject to share and price adjustments as provided in the Merger Agreement. The
Company also assumed at the Effective Time all outstanding BioTrackTHC restricted stock purchase agreements or other agreements providing for risk of
forfeiture of issued and outstanding shares of BioTrackTHC common stock, subject to share and price adjustments as provided in the Merger Agreement.
To secure the indemnification obligations of the BioTrackTHC shareholders to the Company under the Merger Agreement, 4% of the Company shares issued to
the BioTrackTHC shareholders were held back and the Company is entitled to retain such number of the holdback shares as necessary to satisfy those
indemnification obligations. Any holdback shares that remain after satisfaction of any indemnification obligations will be released 18 months after the closing date
of the Merger.
On June 1, 2018 (the “Closing Date”), in connection with closing the Merger, the Company issued 38,184,985 unregistered shares of its common stock to
BioTrackTHC stockholders, of which 1,852,677 shares were held back to satisfy indemnification obligations in the Merger Agreement, if necessary. The Company
also assumed the Bio-Tech Medical Software, Inc. 2014 Stock Incentive Plan (“BioTrackTHC Stock Plan”), pursuant to which options exercisable in the amount
of 8,132,410 shares of common stock are outstanding. As a result, BioTrackTHC stockholders and optionholders own 48% of the Company on a fully diluted basis
as of the closing date.
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements
2. Basis of Presentation
The historical financial information has been adjusted to give pro forma effect to events that are (i) directly attributable to the transaction, (ii) factually supportable,
and (iii) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheets and unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations,
expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results.
3. Consideration Transferred
In consideration of the interests, the Company issued 38,184,985 unregistered shares of Company common stock to BioTrackTHC stockholders, of which
1,852,677 shares were held back to satisfy indemnification obligations in the Merger Agreement, if necessary. The Company also assumed options exercisable for
8,132,410 shares of Company common stock under the BioTrackTHC Stock Plan.
The purchase price is calculated as follows:
Base Price - Common Stock
Base Price - Stock Options
Total consideration
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$

44,905,542
12,646,491

$

57,552,033

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements
4. Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation
A summary of the preliminary purchase price allocation is as follows:

Description

Fair Value

Assets acquired:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Property, plant and equipment, net
Customer list
Software
Tradename
Goodwill
Total assets acquired

$

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed
Estimated fair value of net assets acquired:
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448,697
128,427
351,615
72,252
8,304,449
9,321,627
466,081
39,135,007

$

58,228,155

$

223,581
452,541
676,122

$

57,552,033

Weighted
Average Useful
Life (in years)

5
4.5
4.5

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements
5. BioTrackTHC – Pro Forma Adjustments
(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

Adjustments represent the preliminary fair market value assigned to the assets and liabilities acquired in the BioTrackTHC acquisition. The Company
acquired the assets and liabilities of BioTrackTHC for a purchase price of approximately $57,552,033, as discussed in Notes 3 and 4 above.
To adjust for transaction costs related to expenses incurred in conjunction with the BioTrackTHC acquisition. These costs relate to accounting and legal
expenses and are considered to be non-recurring in nature. As such, an adjustment will be recorded to reflect the $116,624 of transaction costs in Cash and
Retained Earnings within the March 31, 2018 Balance Sheet.
Adjustments represent the preliminary fair market value related to the identifiable intangible assets acquired in the BioTrackTHC acquisition less
amortization expense of $3,820,891 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and $934,219 for the three months ended March 31, 2018, for a total
amortization expense of $4,755,110. Amortization expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the intangible assets.
Adjustment to preferred stock (Class A), common stock and additional paid-in capital (“APIC”) represents the closing out of BioTrackTHC’s outstanding
equity. The adjustment also represents the estimated fair value of the common stock and stock options issued as part of the acquisition.

Details
Adjustment to reverse BioTrackTHC’s Preferred Stock (Class A)
Adjustment to reverse BioTrackTHC’s common stock
Adjustment reflects the estimated fair value of the common stock issued to acquire BioTrackTHC
Adjustment to reverse BioTrackTHC’s APIC
Adjustment reflects the estimated fair value of the common stock and stock options issued to acquire
BioTrackTHC
Total
(e)

Preferred
Stock (Class A)
$
(5,000,000)
-

Common Stock
$
- $
(28,682)
38,185
-

$

(5,000,000)

$

(1,279,078)
57,513,848

$

56,234,770

Adjustment reflects an increase to remove BioTrackTHC’s accumulated deficit, partially offset by a decrease related to the transaction costs incurred by the
Company related to the BioTrackTHC acquisition and a decrease relating to the amortization expenses associated with the acquired intangible assets. See
table below for details on the adjustments to the accumulated deficit:

Details
Adjustment to reverse BioTrackTHC’s accumulated deficit
Adjustment reflects the transaction costs incurred to acquire BioTrackTHC
Adjustment reflects amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 associated with the acquired intangible assets
Adjustment reflects amortization expense for the three months ended March 31, 2018 associated with the acquired intangible assets
Total
(f)

9,503

APIC

Accumulated
Deficit
$
5,722,994
(116,624)
(3,820,891)
(934,219)
$

851,260

Reflects the preliminary adjustment for the amortization expense associated with the fair value of the identifiable intangible assets acquired in the
BioTrackTHC acquisition, over their estimated useful lives.

